
 

 

1 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE ANNUITY AND PENSION BOARD 

EMPLOYES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF THE CITY OF MILWAUKEE 

789 N. WATER ST. (Employes’ Retirement System) 

TUESDAY, MARCH 29, 2022 – 9:00 A.M. 

 

Special Notice: Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the meeting will be held remotely via video 

conference. Instructions on how to observe the meeting will be available on ERS’s website 

(www.cmers.com) prior to the meeting. 

 

Please note and observe the following remote attendance etiquette to ensure a smooth and 

productive meeting:  

• In order to cut down on background noise, participants in the meeting should put their phones 

on mute when they are not participating.  

• At the start of the meeting, the Chairman will announce the names of the members of the Board 

present on the call, as well as anyone else who will be participating.  

• Please request to be recognized by the Chairman if you would like to speak.  

• Those participating on the call should identify themselves whenever they speak, and should 

ensure that the other participants on the call can hear them clearly. 

 

REGULAR MEETING  

I. Approval of Minutes. 

 

A. Regular Meeting Held February 22, 2022. 

 

II. Chief Investment Officer Report. 

 

III. Administration & Operations Committee Report. 

 

A. Approval of Contract Amendment with United Mailing Services, Inc. 

B. Approval of Close out of 2021 Budget. 

 

IV. New Business. 

 

A. Board Rule II.C.5. – Role of Deputy Director in the Absence or Illness of the 

Secretary and Executive Director. 

B. Retirements, Death Claims, and Refunds (February). 

C. Conference Requests – March 2022 Board Meeting. 

 

V. Medical Reports. 

 

A. All Duty & Ordinary Disability Applications & Re-examinations (March). 

http://www.cmers.com/


 

 

2 

VI. Unfinished Business. 

 

A. Pending Legal Opinions and Service Requests Report. 

B. Pending Legislation Report. 

C. Executive Director’s Report – Inventory of ERS Projects. 

 

VII. Informational.  

 

Please be advised that the Annuity and Pension Board may vote to convene in closed session on the 

following item (A.), as provided in Section 19.85(1)(g), Wisconsin State Statutes, to confer with 

legal counsel concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is or 

is likely to become involved. The Board may then vote to reconvene in open session following the 

closed session. 

 

A. Pending Litigation Report.  

 B. Conferences. 

C. Class Action Income 2022 YTD. 

D. Report on Bills. 

E. Deployment of Assets. 

F. Securities Lending Revenue and Budget Report. 

G. Preliminary Performance Report and Asset Allocation. 

 

 

 

 

MEETING REMINDERS 

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE MEETING  

THURSDAY, APRIL 14, 2022 – 9:00 A.M. 

789 N. WATER ST. 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE ANNUITY AND PENSION BOARD  

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 27, 2022 – 9:00 A.M. 

789 N. WATER ST. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

I. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

A. Regular Meeting Held February 22, 2022. 

 

 

 

 



 

               EMPLOYES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF THE CITY OF MILWAUKEE 

ANNUITY AND PENSION BOARD 

 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting 

held February 22, 2022 via teleconference during COVID-19 

  

The meeting was called to order at 9:02 a.m. 

 

Board Members Present:   Matthew Bell, Chair  

     James Campbell 

     Deborah Ford 

     Tom Klusman  

Rudolph Konrad 

Nik Kovac 

Aycha Sawa 

 

Board Members Not Present:  Molly King 

 

Retirement System Staff Present: Jerry Allen, Executive Director 

Melody Johnson, Deputy Director 

     Daniel Gopalan, Chief Financial Officer 

     David Silber, Chief Investment Officer 

     Erich Sauer, Deputy Chief Investment Officer 

Gust Petropoulos, Deputy Director - Disability 

Mary Turk, Business Operations Analyst 

Jan Wills, Board Stenographer     

 

Others Present: Hannah Ross, Avi Josefson, BLB&G; Jim Carroll, City Attorney’s Office; Terry 

Siddiqui, DS Consulting, Inc., seven members of the public called in to the meeting. 

Regular Meeting. 

Appointment of Committees for 2022. 

Administration and Operations Committee. 

Investment Committee. 

Legislative Committee. 

Litigation Committee. 

Mr. Bell said Ms. Sawa was re-appointed as Chair of the Administration and Operations 

Committee, Mr. Klusman was appointed Chair of the Investment Committee, and Ms. Ford was 

re-appointed as Chair of the Legislative Committee. He said a Litigation Committee chair would 

be appointed when necessary. Discussion ensued. 

Ms. King arrived at the meeting at 9:03 a.m. 

  



02/22/22 

2 

Approval of Minutes. 

Annual Meeting Held January 26, 2022. It was moved by Ms. King, seconded by Mr. 

Campbell, and unanimously carried, to approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting Held January 

26, 2022.  

Minutes of the Special Board Meeting Held February 10, 2022. It was moved by Ms. 

Sawa, seconded by Mr. Klusman, and unanimously carried, to approve the Minutes of the Special 

Board Meeting Held February 10, 2022.  

 

At this point, Mr. Bell took the meeting out of order to item V.A. New Business – Update and 

Consideration of Strategy, Tactics and Potential Resolution Regarding the Allianz Litigation. 

 

New Business. 

 

 Update and Consideration of Strategy, Tactics and Potential Resolution Regarding 

the Allianz Litigation. 

 
Mr. Bell advised that the Annuity and Pension Board may vote to convene in closed session on the 

following item (A.), as provided in Section 19.85(1)(g), Wisconsin State Statutes, to confer with legal 

counsel concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is or is 

likely to become involved. The Board may then vote to reconvene in open session following the closed 

session.  

 

It was moved by Mr. Klusman and seconded by Mr. Konrad to convene in closed session. The 

motion prevailed by the following roll call vote: AYES: Ms. Ford, King, and Sawa; Messrs. Bell, 

Campbell, Klusman, Konrad, and Kovac. NOES: None.  

 

The meeting convened in closed session at 9:09 a.m. 

 

The meeting reconvened in open session at 10:04 a.m. 

 

Mr. Bell returned the meeting to agenda item III. Chief Investment Officer Report. 

 

Chief Investment Officer Report.  

 

As a matter of information, Board members received the February 22, 2022 Performance Update. 

Mr. Sauer noted the Fund as of January 31, 2022, had a value of $6.12 billion. He said the Fund 

return of -2.1%, gross of fees, outperformed the blended benchmark by approximately 62 basis 

points. Mr. Sauer commented that the Fund outperformed in all time periods shown, net of fees. 

He said the January relative performance drivers were Manager Selection with Brandes adding 44 

basis points, DFA mandates adding 30 basis points, Real Estate adding 26 basis points, and 

William Blair which detracted  -39 basis points. He commented that nine out of 15 active mandates 

outperformed. He noted the Public Equity and Absolute Return asset classes, along with the Total 

Fund, outperformed their respective benchmarks. Mr. Sauer said the Fund had an investment loss 

of $132.9 million, paid benefits & expenses of $39 million, and received contributions of $73.4 

million. He added that withdrawals from investment managers were not necessary in January 

because of declines in the stock market and the Fund’s overweight cash balance, which is more 



02/22/22 

3 

than enough to cover benefits payments this month. Mr. Sauer also gave an update on due diligence 

planning for CastleArk, the new Hedge Fund of Fund Managers, and DFA and Brandes. He said 

it is hoped for the due diligence meetings to be in person. 

 

Mr. Silber noted Staff used its delegated authority granted by the Board to sign a document to 

receive over $13 million from one of the remaining non-core Real Estate investments.     

 

Investment Committee Report. 

 

At the February 10 meeting, Chairman Klusman said the Investment Committee interviewed three 

investment managers as part of the Hedge Fund of Funds Manager search. The investment 

managers interviewed were Goldman Sachs Asset Management AIMS Aptitude, Blackstone 

Alternative Asset Management, and Grosvenor Capital Management. Mr. Klusman noted the 

Committee selected one finalist in closed session and directed the ERS Staff to conduct due 

diligence and coordinate legal negotiations with the selected finalist. He said the selection is 

contingent on successful due diligence and contract negotiations. 

 

Please be advised that the Annuity and Pension Board may vote to convene in closed session on 

the following item (A.), as provided in Section 19.85(1)(e), Wisconsin State Statutes, to deliberate 

or negotiate the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other 

specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session. 

The Board may then vote to reconvene in open session following the closed session. 

 

 Selection of Hedge Fund of Funds Manager. It was moved by Mr. Konrad, seconded by 

Mr. Campbell, and unanimously carried, to approve the Investment Committee Report. 

 

New Business. 

 

 Retirements, Death Claims, and Refunds (January). Mr. Allen presented the 

following activity for the month of January 2022. 

 

Active Death Benefits reported    $0.00 

 

Deferred Death      $0.00 

 

Deferred Death-Member Only Refund   $1,911.82 

 

  Ordinary Death Benefits reported    $240,846.71  

  

  Retired Death Benefits reported    $252,248.88 

 

Survivor Death – Termination Benefits reported  $13,305.26 

   

  Refund of Member Contributions paid   $206,596.63 

 

 It was moved by Ms. King, seconded by Mr. Konrad, and unanimously carried, to approve 

the Retirements, Death Claims, and Refunds (January 2022). 

 



02/22/22 

4 

 Conference Requests – February 2022 Board Meeting. Staff noted there were no 

requests this month to attend conferences. 

 

Mr. Bell advised that the Annuity and Pension Board may vote to convene in closed session on the 

following item as provided in Section 19.85 (1)(c), for considering employment, promotion, 

compensation or performance evaluation data of any public employe over which the governmental 

body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility. The Board may then vote to reconvene in open 

session following the closed session. 

 

ERS Executive Staff Compensation. It was moved by Ms. King and seconded by Mr. 

Campbell to convene in closed session. The motion prevailed by the following roll call vote: 

AYES: Ms. Ford, King, and Sawa; Messrs. Bell, Campbell, Klusman, Konrad, and Kovac. NOES: 

None.  

 

The meeting convened in closed session at 10:19 a.m. 

 

The meeting reconvened in open session at 11:23 a.m. 

 

Medical Reports.    
 

 All Duty & Ordinary Disability Applications & Re-examinations (February). Staff 

presented certifications (February 2022) of the Fire and Police Medical Panel Physicians and the 

Medical Council relative to Duty & Ordinary Disability Retirement benefits as follows:   

 

Police – Re-examinations – Duty   Recommendation 

 

Brandon Baranowski     Approval     

 

Fire – Re-examinations – Duty   Recommendation 

 

Pieter Gallagher     Approval 

Teresa MacGuire     Approval 

William Soderbeck     Approval  

Christopher Underwood    Approval 

  

Fire – Re-examinations – Ordinary   Recommendation 

 

Christopher Kietzke     Approval 

        

GC – Re-examinations – Ordinary   Recommendation 

 

Ywanda Bryant     Approval 

Renee Gibbs      Approval    

           

It was moved by Mr. Klusman, seconded by Ms. Ford, and unanimously carried, to approve 

the Duty & Ordinary Disability Applications & Re-examinations (February). 

  



02/22/22 

5 

Unfinished Business. 

 Pending and Legal Opinions and Service Requests Report. As a matter of information, 

Board members received the Pending Legal Opinions and Service Requests Report. Staff noted 

two Legal Opinions regarding Review of Board Rule II.A.2 and Same Sex Spouse Retirees are 

awaiting review by the City Attorney’s Office. Staff also noted there are two Service Requests for 

Contract for Banking Services and Contract for Office Space. 

 Pending Legislation Report. As a matter of information, Board members received the 

Pending Legislation Report. Staff said there were no new updates on the Pending Legislation 

Report.  

  Executive Director’s Report – Inventory of ERS Projects. As a matter of information, 

Staff presented a report on the ERS projects and updated the Board on ERS activities, a copy of 

which is on file with the ERS. Discussion ensued. 

Informational.  
 

 The following is a list of informational items: 

 

1) Pending Litigation Report. 

2) Conferences. 

3) Class Action Income 2022 YTD. 

4) Adjusted Quarterly Cost Basis of Equity 

5) Minutes of the Investment Committee Meeting Held February 10, 2022. 

 

The following is a list of activities since the last Board meeting, copies sent with meeting 

notice and attached to minutes: 

 

6) Report on Bills. 

7) Deployment of Assets. 

8) Securities Lending Revenue and Budget Report. 

9) Preliminary Performance Report and Asset Allocation. 

 

There being no further business to come before the meeting, it was moved by Mr. Klusman 

and seconded by Ms. Sawa to adjourn the meeting. 

 

Mr. Bell adjourned the meeting at 11:32 a.m. 

 

 

 

 

Bernard J. Allen 

Secretary and Executive Director 

 
 

(NOTE: All proceedings of the Annuity and Pension Board Meetings and related Committee Meetings are 

recorded. All recordings and material mentioned herein are on file in the office of the Employes’ Retirement 

System, 789 N. Water Street, Suite 300.) 



II. 

CHIEF INVESTMENT OFFICER REPORT 



Fund as of February 28, 2022

Return Data
Source Data: Monthly Return

1 Month YTD 1 Year 5 Year 10 Year 15 Year 20 Year

Total Fund (net) 1.4 -0.7 15.6 10.2 9.3 6.8 7.7

ERS Benchmark -1.1 -3.8 7.8 9.0 8.6 6.6 7.1

Return Std Dev
Tracking 

Error

Info 
Ratio 
(arith)

Sharpe 
Ratio Alpha Beta

Total Fund (net) 7.7 10.4 2.5 0.3 0.6 -0.1 1.1

ERS Benchmark 7.1 9.2 -- -- 0.6 0.0 1.0

Total Fund - 20-Year Risk & Return Data

Milwaukee Employes' Retirement System - March 29, 2022

*Fund value of $6.17b.          

*Fund return of 1.4%, gross of 
fees.    
        
*Fund outperformed in all time 
periods shown.
                                                                                                                                                             
*8 out of 15 active mandates 
outperforming YTD.

*Public Equity, Fixed Income, and 
Absolute Return asset classes, 
along with Total Fund, 
outperforming their respective 
benchmarks YTD.      
          
*Investment Change:   -$47.9m    
*Benefits & Expenses:     77.7m 
*Contributions:                 77.9m

Monthly Withdrawals:                     
Majority of benefit payments will 
come from Fund's Cash Balance.
Principal                                $9m

Public Equity, 
41.4

Fixed Income, 
25.8

Real Assets, 
13.2

Private Equity, 
12.3

Absolute 
Return, 7.2

ERS Allocation as of February 28, 2022

ERS allocation weights may not total 
100% due to rounding

-2.8

2.8

2.3

-2.6

0.2

-5.0 -2.5 -- 2.5 5.0

Absolute Return

Fixed Income

Private Equity

Public Equity

Real Assets

Asset Allocation vs Policy as of February 28, 2022



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

III. 

 

ADMINISTRATION & OPERATIONS COMMITTEE REPORT  

 

 

A. Approval of Contract Amendment with United Mailing Services, Inc. 

B. Approval of Close out of 2021 Budget.



SECOND AMENDMENT  

TO THE SERVICE AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

THE EMPLOYES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF THE CITY OF MILWAUKEE 

AND  

UNITED MAILING SERVICES, Inc. 

 

THIS IS THE SECOND AMENDMENT (“Second Amendment”) to the Service 

Agreement (“Agreement”) beginning May 1, 2017, between the Employes’ Retirement 

System of the City of Milwaukee (“ERS”) and United Mailing Services, Inc. (“UMS”);  

 

 WHEREAS, on May 1, 2017, the ERS and UMS entered into the Service 

Agreement; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Agreement was amended via the First Amendment To The 

Contract For Services between the Employes’ Retirement System and United Mailing 

Services, Inc. (“the First Amendment”) in January of 2020; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in 2021, ERS completed a request for quotations and determined that 

UMS will remain the ERS’s vendor for the services described herein; and 

 

WHEREAS, ERS and UMS wish to amend the Agreement to extend it for three 

additional years: 

 

 NOW, THERFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein stated, ERS 

and UMS agree to amend the Agreement as follows: 

 

1. The term of the Agreement, as set forth in paragraph 2.1 entitled “TIME OF 

PERFORMANCE” is amended to read: “upon April 30, 2025”; and, the “Time of 

Performance” on the head of the contract shall read: “May 1, 2017  –  April 30, 2025.” 

 

2. The maximum compensation as set forth on the head of the contract entitled 

“Maximum Compensation Not to Exceed” is amended to read “$501,000.” 

 

3. The Request for Proposal attached to the Agreement as Exhibit A is replaced with 

the new Request for Proposal attached to this Second Amendment as Exhibit 1. 

 

4. The Scope of Work attached to the Agreement as Exhibit B is replaced with the 

new Scope of Work attached to this Second Amendment as Exhibit 2, with new prices 

which shall apply prospectively starting on April 1, 2022. 

 

5. These changes constitute the entire Second Amendment to the Agreement.  All 

other covenants, provisions, terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain 

unchanged. 

 



6. This Second Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of 

which shall be deemed to be an original; all such counterparts shall, together, constitute 

only one instrument.  PDFs shall be deemed the same as originals.  

 

[REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto execute this Second Amendment:    

 

 

United Mailing Services, Inc. 

 

________________________________________  ________________ 

Name:        Date 

 

Title:  

 

 

 

 

THE EMPLOYES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF THE CITY OF MILWAUKEE 

 

________________________________________  ________________ 

Name:        Date 

 

Title: Board Chair  

 

________________________________________  ________________ 

Bernard J. Allen, Executive Director   Date 

 

 

Countersigned: 

 

 

________________________________________ ________________ 

Assistant City Attorney    Date 

As to Form and Execution 
 

 

 



 
EXHIBIT 1 

Request for Quote For 
Mailing & Printing Services 

For the 
Employes’ Retirement System (ERS) 

Of the City of Milwaukee 
 

Quotes are due to Mary Turk by:  
4:45pm, Wednesday, December 1, 2021 

By e-mail:  Mary.Turk@CMERS.com (required), or also at the following address: 
Employes’ Retirement System, 789 N Water Street, Suite 300, Milwaukee WI 53202 
 
The ERS is seeking quotes for mailing and printing services to meet its business 
requirements in the following areas: 
 
Monthly pension check/ACH advice mailings 
Newsletter mailings 
Board election mailings 
Annual statement mailings 
Occasional special mailings 
Printing services for monthly newsletters or any other mailed communication. 
 
Vendor to quote pricing for a three year term.  Contract may be extended by mutual 
agreement of the parties for additional two-year terms. 
 
Particular specifications are as follows: 
 
Monthly Pension Check/ACH Advice Mailings 
●13,500-14,500 mailings, monthly, first class pre-sort postage using ERS window 
envelopes 
●Will require folding and stuffing of a monthly newsletter 
●Will require printing of the newsletter 
●Newsletter will be standard 8 ½ x 11” paper or on occasion, 8 ½ x 14 legal size 
paper (black ink on colored paper) 
●Requires pick-up at the ERS offices, on the fourth business day prior to month-end 
to be held in a secured file until mailing early on the second last business day of the 
month to result in local delivery on the last business day of the month 
●Will require storage of ERS envelopes on site of at least a six month supply and as 
many as an 18 month supply.  These envelopes are for this mailing only. 
●On occasion may require a third document for stuffing. 
 
 
 

mailto:Mary.Turk@CMERS.com


Newsletter Mailings – Active (with Annual Member Statements) 
●14,000 to 15,000 active member newsletters 
●Will require folding and stuffing – one or two pieces of standard size paper 
●May require printing of the newsletter 
●Newsletter will be standard 8 ½ x 11” paper, duplex printing, black ink on colored 
paper 
●Standard letter size envelopes to be provided by ERS at the time of mailing 
(windowed envelopes) 
●Pre-sort first class postage required 
●Will require pick-up from ERS offices with mailing to occur within 3-5 business days 
 
Board Election Mailings 
●13,500 to 14,500 either active or retired member letters announcing nominations 
for board election 
●May require printing of announcement 
●Will require folding of announcement and stuffing of announcement, ballot and a 
small return envelope in a standard ERS envelope 
●Address file to be supplied along with envelopes at time of mailing 
●Mailing to occur within 3 business days 
●Pre-sort first class postage required 
●Pick-up at ERS offices for all materials 
●This process to be repeated using nomination forms that are 4 ¼” x 5 ¾” which 
may need to be printed, and will have to be stuffed.  Process may occur twice if 
there is a run-off for the election. 
 
Annual Member Statement Mailings 
●15,000 active & deferred member statements (annually) 
●folding and stuffing required – will require stuffing of an active newsletter mailing 
(see “Newsletter Mailings - Active” section above) 
●Use of ERS window envelope 
●Pre-sort first class postage required 
●Pick-up at ERS offices of all materials, mailing to occur within 3-5 business days 
  
Occasional Special Mailings 
As the need arises, special mailings may be needed ranging in size from 500 to 
25,000 pieces. 
Will require folding and stuffing 
May require use of supplied window envelopes, or alternatively we may supply an 
address file with envelopes 
May require printing 
 
Please quote charges for using colored paper and color printing. 
Please quote charges for a second or third insert. 
 



Vendor to exercise quality control over all mailings, paying attention to, among other 
things, placement of address in window envelopes. 
 
Mailing times cited herein are essential deadlines. 
 
ERS may maintain a postage advance equal of one to two months normal pension 
Check/ACH Advice mailing.  Vendor to invoice not more than monthly for services.  
Such invoice to include actual postage charges to restore Postage advance 

or 
Vendor to front postage costs.  Vendor to invoice not more than monthly for 
services.  Such invoice to include actual postage charges.  
 
 
The Employes’ Retirement System (ERS) reserves the right to accept or reject 
any and all quotes or not proceed with any action.  ERS will incur no liability 
for the cost of quote preparation. 

 
An Excel spreadsheet is attached for use in quoting the services to be provided.  
Please submit in spreadsheet form. 
 
In addition to the above quotation, the ERS is interested in retaining a back-up 
service provider in the event of an emergency where the primary service provider 
may be unable to process a monthly payroll.  An additional tab for emergency 
services is included with the spreadsheet related to payroll processing. 
 
Please note the following insurance requirements of the Employes’ Retirement 
System. 
 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

A. General Requirements 

A certificate of insurance acceptable to the Employes’ Retirement 
System (ERS) and City evidencing the insurance requirements is to be 
provided.  The certificate shall state that the issued insurance policies 
meet the requirements as outlined below.  All certificates are to be 
provided within 30 days of final execution of this Contract.  If such 
certificate is not received, the (ERS) and the City of Milwaukee has the 
authority to declare this Contract terminated.  Certificates of Liability 
are to be submitted annually. 

All policies shall state that the ERS and City shall be afforded a thirty 
(30) day written notice of cancellation, non-renewal or material change 
by any insurers providing the coverage required by the ERS and City 
for the duration of this Contract. 



Insurance companies must be acceptable to the ERS and City and 
must have a current A.M. Best rating of A- VIII or better. 

All policies shall be written on an occurrence form, other than 
professional liability as noted below. 

If subcontractors are used, each must meet all requirements in 
sections A and B. 

B. The minimum insurance requirements are as follows: 

(1) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability 

Workers’ Compensation    Statutory Coverage 

Bodily Injury by Accident    $100,000 each accident 

Bodily Injury by Disease    $500,000 policy limit 

Bodily Injury by Disease    $100,000 each employee 

 Employer’s Liability at limits noted above or higher limits if needed 

to meet Umbrella underlying insurance requirements. 

 Coverage shall be modified to include a Waiver of Subrogation 
Endorsement in favor of the ERS and City including their directors, 
officers, agents, employees and volunteers. 

(2) Commercial General Liability 

Commercial General Liability  $1,000,000 each occurrence 

General Aggregate    $2,000,000 aggregate 

Personal & Advertising Injury Limit $1,000,000 each occurrence 

Products - Completed Operations Aggregate $2,000,000 aggregate 

Medical Expense     $       5,000 each person 

 Coverage must be equivalent to ISO form CG0001 or better. 

 The ERS and City of Milwaukee shall be added as additional 

insureds using ISO form CG2026 or its equivalent. 

 Coverage shall be modified to include a Waiver of Subrogation 
Endorsement in favor of the ERS and City including their directors, 
officers, agents, employees and volunteers. 

 The policy shall include independent contractors 
(owners/contractors protective) and contractual liability. 

 Coverage will apply on a primary and non-contributory basis.  We 
suggest the following wording: 

“If you have agreed in a written contract that this policy will be 
primary and without right of contribution from any insurance in 



force for an Additional Insured for liability arising out of your 
operations, and the contract was executed prior to the bodily 
injury, property damage, personal injury or advertising injury, then 
this insurance will be primary over, and we will not seek 
contribution from, such insurance.” 

 Coverage shall apply to the risks associated with or arising out of 
the services provided under this contract. 

(3) Auto Liability 

Combined Single Limit    $1,000,000 each accident 

Medical Expense     $     10,000 each person 

 If the Contractor owns or has any long term leased vehicles, 
coverage must be for Any Auto (Symbol 1).  If there are no owned 
or long term leased vehicles, then coverage must be for Hired and 
Non-Owned Auto Liability (Symbols 8 and 9). 

 Coverage shall be modified to include a Waiver of Subrogation 
Endorsement in favor of the ERS and City including their directors, 
officers, agents, employees and volunteers. 

 The ERS and City of Milwaukee shall be added as additional 

insureds. 

 Coverage shall include contractual liability for risks assumed in this 

contract. 

 Coverage shall apply to the risks associated with or arising out of 
the services provided under this contract. 

 If Federal or State government(s) require a Motor Carrier filing, 
such filing shall be made available to City upon request. 

(4) Umbrella (Excess) Liability 

Umbrella (excess) Liability   $5,000,000 per occurrence 

$5,000,000 aggregate 

 The Umbrella Liability insurance shall provide coverage excess of 
the Employer’s Liability, Commercial General Liability and Auto 
Liability Coverages, including the amendments stated above. 

(5) Crime Insurance 

Employee Dishonesty    $1,000,000 per loss 

Forgery or Alteration    1,000,000 per loss 

 The Crime Insurance shall provide coverage for Third Party 
Employee Dishonesty. 



(6) Professional Liability (Printers Errors and Omissions) 

Combined Single Limit    $1,000,000 each accident 

 Coverage must remain in effect for a period of not less than two 

years beyond the termination date of the contract. 

 If a claims-made form is used and a change of insurer occurs 
during the contract period, continuity of coverage must be 
maintained by either retaining the original retroactive date or 
exercising the extended reporting period endorsement option 
from the expired policy for a period of not less than two years, 
if the replacement insurer will not preserve the original 
retroactive date. 

 Coverage shall be modified to include a Waiver of Subrogation 
Endorsement in favor of the ERS and City including their 
directors, officers, agents, employees and volunteers. 

 (7) Cyber Insurance (if in possession of personally identifiable 
information) 

Cyber Insurance     $1,000,000 each incident 

 Coverage shall include liability coverage for all damages, claims 
expenses, costs, fines and penalties related to unauthorized 
disclosure of personally identifiable information. 

 The ERS and City of Milwaukee shall be added as additional 
insureds. 

 Coverage shall include cost of notification, cost of identity 
protection and repair insurance for affected individuals. 

 



EXHIBIT 2
ERS Price quote for Requested Mailing/Printing Service

Estimated 

Volume Description

Vendor price 

quote per unit

Monthly pension check/ACH advice mailings (Full First Class)

Produce copy of monthly newsletter or other document (quote to include cost 

of vendor supplied paper) to accompany check/ach advice

14,000       Sized -8½x11 one-sided 0.025

14,000       Sized-8½x11 duplexed 0.042

14,000       Sized -8½x14 one-sided 0.031

14,000       Sized-8½x14 duplexed 0.048

14,000

Fold and stuff supplied 8½x11 check/ach advice with one insert in supplied 

window envelopes to be stored at vendor location (inserts may be either letter 

or legal sized.  Quote to cover either size.) and deliver for mailing. 0.052

14,000

Additional cost for second insert (inserts may be either letter or legal sized.  

Quote to cover either size.) 0.01 per piece

Newsletter mailings (Pre-Sort First Class)

Produce copy of newsletter or other document (quote to include cost of vendor 

supplied paper)

15,000       Sized -8½x11 one-sided 0.025

15,000       Sized-8½x11 duplexed 0.042

15,000       Sized -8½x14 one-sided 0.031

15,000       Sized-8½x14 duplexed 0.048

15,000 Produce printed ballots sized .0175 per ballot

15,000

Print addresses on ERS supplied envelopes from supplied address file in order 

specified by ERS 0.025

15,000

Fold and stuff single sheet newsletter (may be either letter or legal sized.  

Quote to cover either size.) and deliver for mailing. 0.052

15,000

Additional cost for second insert (inserts may be either letter or legal sized.  

Quote to cover either size.) 0.01 per piece

Board election mailings (Pre-Sort First Class)

Produce copy of narrative to accompany mailing (quote to include cost of 

vendor supplied paper)

14,000       Sized -8½x11 one-sided 0.025

14,000       Sized-8½x11 duplexed 0.042

14,000       Sized -8½x14 one-sided 0.031

14,000       Sized-8½x14 duplexed 0.048

14,000

Print 4¼x5½ ballots to be used for election mailing (quote to include cost of 

vendor supplied paper) .0175 per ballot

14,000

Print addresses on ERS supplied envelopes from supplied address file in order 

specified by ERS 0.025

14,000

Fold and stuff narrative (may be either letter or legal sized.  Quote to cover 

either size.) a 4¼x5½ ballot and a 6½x3¾ return envelope and deliver for 

mailing. 0.081

14,000

Additional cost for second insert (inserts may be either letter or legal sized.  

Quote to cover either size.) 0.01 per piece

Counts are approximate and are not guaranteed, not all services will be required for all mailings.



EXHIBIT 2
ERS Price quote for Requested Mailing/Printing Service

Estimated 

Volume Description

Vendor price 

quote per unit

Annual statement mailings (Full First Class)

Produce potential document to accompany mailing (quote to include cost of 

vendor supplied paper)

15,000       Sized -8½x11 one-sided 0.025

15,000       Sized-8½x11 duplexed 0.042

15,000       Sized -8½x14 one-sided 0.031

15,000       Sized-8½x14 duplexed 0.048

15,000 Fold and stuff 8½x11 Annual Statement in ERS supplied window envelope and 

deliver for mailing. 0.052

15,000 Additional cost for second insert (inserts may be either letter or legal sized.  

Quote to cover either size.) 0.01 per piece

15,000 Additional cost for third insert (inserts may be either letter or legal sized.  

Quote to cover either size.) 0.01 per piece

Occasional special mailings (Postage class determined for each job)

Produce potential document to accompany mailing (quote to include cost of 

vendor supplied paper)

500-3,000       Sized -8½x11 one-sided 0.025

500-3,000       Sized-8½x11 duplexed 0.042

500-3,000       Sized -8½x14 one-sided 0.031

500-3,000       Sized-8½x14 duplexed 0.048

500-3,000 Print addresses on ERS supplied envelopes from supplied address file in order 

specified by ERS 0.025

500-3,000 Fold and stuff single sheet (may be either letter or legal sized.  Quote to cover 

either size.)  and deliver for mailing. 0.052

500-3,000 Fold and stuff single sheet in ERS supplied window envelope and deliver for 

mailing. 0.052

500-3,000 Additional cost for second insert in either type envelope (inserts may be either 

letter or legal sized.  Quote to cover either size.) 0.01 per piece

Produce potential document to accompany mailing (quote to include cost of 

vendor supplied paper)

3,001-12,000       Sized -8½x11 one-sided 0.025

3,001-12,000       Sized-8½x11 duplexed 0.042

3,001-12,000       Sized -8½x14 one-sided 0.031

3,001-12,000       Sized-8½x14 duplexed 0.048

3,001-12,000

Print addresses on ERS supplied envelopes from supplied address file in order 

specified by ERS 0.025

3,001-12,000

Fold and stuff single sheet (may be either letter or legal sized.  Quote to cover 

either size.)  and deliver for mailing. 0.052

3,001-12,000

Fold and stuff single sheet in ERS supplied window envelope and deliver for 

mailing. 0.052

Counts are approximate and are not guaranteed, not all services will be required for all mailings.



EXHIBIT 2
ERS Price quote for Requested Mailing/Printing Service

Estimated 

Volume Description

Vendor price 

quote per unit

3,001-12,000

Additional cost for second insert in either type envelope (inserts may be either 

letter or legal sized.  Quote to cover either size.) 0.01 per piece

Occasional special mailings (Postage class determined for each job) continued

Produce potential document to accompany mailing (quote to include cost of 

vendor supplied paper)

>12,000       Sized -8½x11 one-sided 0.025

>12,000       Sized-8½x11 duplexed 0.042

>12,000       Sized -8½x14 one-sided 0.031

>12,000       Sized-8½x14 duplexed 0.048

>12,000

Print addresses on ERS supplied envelopes from supplied address file in order 

specified by ERS 0.025

>12,000

Fold and stuff single sheet (may be either letter or legal sized.  Quote to cover 

either size.)  and deliver for mailing. 0.052

>12,000

Fold and stuff single sheet in ERS supplied window envelope and deliver for 

mailing. 0.052

>12,000

Additional cost for second insert in either type envelope (inserts may be either 

letter or legal sized.  Quote to cover either size.) 0.01 per piece

Special Printing-Colors

Vendor will either be supplied an original document, Microsoft Word 

file, or PDF file when asked to copy/print. Where quoting printing, 

vendor should assume one color (black) printing on white paper.  

Indicate additional costs for colored Printing/Paper below.  In particular, 

there may be instances where ERS desires a different color, such as a 

different color ballot in a run-off election.  If color is specified, it is 

expected to be light enough to enable printing thereon to be easily 

read.

Any Premium charged per print job for used of color paper per 8½x11 sheet. 0.01

Any Premium charged per print job for used of color paper per 11x14 sheet. 0.01

If vendor is capable of printing in colors, indicate premium for printing in color 

below.

Any Premium charged per print job for printing in color one-sided on 8½x11 ea. 0.04

Any Premium charged per print job for printing in color duplexed on 8½x11 ea. 0.08

Any Premium charged per print job for printing in color one-sided on 11x14 ea. 0.04

Any Premium charged per print job for printing in color duplexed on 11x14 ea. 0.08

Counts are approximate and are not guaranteed, not all services will be required for all mailings.









IV. 

NEW BUSINESS 

A. Board Rule II.C.5. – Role of Deputy Director in the Absence or Illness of the 
Secretary and Executive Director.

B. Retirements, Death Claims, and Refunds (February).

C. Conference Requests – March 2022 Board Meeting.

 















 

 

 

Conference Requests – March 2022 Board Meeting 
 

 

Erich Sauer New Hedge Fund of Funds Manager Due Diligence 

Sponsor:   New Hedge Fund of Funds Manager     

Location:     

Date:     April 11 – 13, 2022    

Estimated Cost:  $1,400.00  

 

 

Erich Sauer, CastleArk Due Diligence 

Thomas Courtright 

Sponsor:   CastleArk     

Location:   Chicago, IL   

Date:     April 20, 2022    

Estimated Cost:  $250.00 total 

 

 

Jerry Allen   Callan Institute 2022 Annual Conference 

Sponsor:   Callan  

Location:   San Francisco, CA 

Date:     April 25 – 27, 2022 

Estimated Cost:  $2,500.00  

 

 

David Silber, Loomis Sayles & MFS Due Diligence; Prologis Meeting 

Thomas Courtright 

Sponsor:   Loomis Sayles, MFS, Prologis     

Location:   Boston, MA   

Date:     May 9 – 11, 2022    

Estimated Cost:  $1,600.00 per person 

 

 

Deborah Ford NCPERS Annual Conference & Exhibition and  

Trustee Education Seminar 

Sponsor:   NCPERS     

Location:   Washington, DC   

Date:     May 21 – 25, 2022    

Estimated Cost:  $4,300.00 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

V. 

 

MEDICAL REPORTS  

 

 

A. All Duty & Ordinary Disability Applications & Re-examinations (March). 

 

 

 

 







 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

VI. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

 

A. Pending Legal Opinions and Service Requests Report. 

B. Pending Legislation Report. 

C. Executive Director’s Report – Inventory of ERS Projects. 

 



 

 
 

789 North Water Street ♦ Suite 300 ♦ Milwaukee WI 53202 ♦  Phone 414-286-3557 or 1-800-815-8418 ♦ Fax 414-286-8428 
Page 1 

 

  
 
 
 
 

PENDING LEGAL OPINIONS AND SERVICE REQUESTS REPORT  
 
 
PART 1.    LEGAL OPINIONS - OFFICE OF CITY ATTORNEY  
 

12/23/21 Review of Board Rule II.A.2 (Annuity & Pension Board Ex-Officio Trustee) 
The Pension Board requested City Attorney’s Office to review prior legal opinion and city ordinances 
in conjunction with Board Rule II. A. 2 and advise whether the Deputy Comptroller may serve and 
vote as a member of the Pension Board in the absence or inability of the Comptroller to serve as an 
ex-officio member of the Board. 
  

01/28/22 Same Sex Spouse Retirees 
The Employes’ Retirement System received an inquiry from a retiree as it relates to a post-retirement 
election of a same gender spouse survivor where state law was found to unconstitutionally prohibit 
same gender marriages previous to the retirement of the retiree. 
 

03/01/22 Annuity & Pension Board Direct Hires 
The City Attorney’s Office is asked to revise the Inter-Governmental Cooperation Agreement 
between the ERS/APB and City of Milwaukee that would authorize the Board to directly hire 
employees who are not subject to the City’s Salary Ordinance. 

 
 

 

PART 2.    LEGAL OPINIONS - OUTSIDE LEGAL COUNSEL  
 

 None. 
 
 

 
PART 3.    SERVICE REQUESTS - OFFICE OF CITY ATTORNEY  
 

12/16/21 Contract for Banking Services 

ERS staff requests assistance of legal counsel in drafting and negotiating a contract for banking 
services with vendor. 

 

01/14/22 Contract for Office Space 

ERS staff requests the services of the City Attorney’s in the negotiation and drafting of a contract for 
office space. 

 
 

 
  

March 29, 2022 Board Meeting 
 
 



 
 
 

789 North Water Street ♦ Suite 300 ♦ Milwaukee WI 53202 ♦  Phone 414-286-3557 or 1-800-815-8418 ♦ Fax 414-286-8428 

  Page 2 

 

PART 4.    SERVICE REQUESTS - OUTSIDE LEGAL COUNSEL 
 

02/14/22 Hedge Fund Investment Manager 

ERS Investment staff requests legal counsel to assist with the negotiation and drafting of an 
investment manager agreement with a newly-selected hedge fund manager. 
03/11/22 City Attorney’s Office has referred this service request to Reinhart Boerner Van Deuren 

S.C.  
 

   
 



 

789 North Water Street ♦ Suite 300 ♦ Milwaukee WI 53202 ♦ Phone 414-286-3557 or 1-800-815-8418 ♦ Fax 414-286-8428 
Page 1 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

PENDING LEGISLATION REPORT  
 
 
 
 

PART 1.   PENDING CHARTER ORDINANCES FOR COMMON COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 None. 

 
 
 

 
 

PART 2. PENDING CHANGES TO THE RULES & REGULATIONS 
 
 None. 

 
 
 
 
 

PART 3. PENDING LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE REFERRALS  
 
 Pension Contribution Offset 
 12/13/16 ERS requested legal guidance on whether the 5.8% pension contribution offset for public safety 

employees pursuant to recent labor contract settlements or interest arbitration, is includable as “salary” for 
adjusting duty disability retirement allowance. 
02/16/17 City Attorney issued a legal opinion advising that since members receiving a duty disability retirement 
allowance have not paid the member contributions, they are not entitled to the 5.8% pension contribution offset.  
02/27/17 Opinion referred to Legislative Committee for consideration on whether the pension contribution offset 
received by general city and protective service members should be included in the calculation of the Conversion 
to Service Retirement and Extended Life retirement allowances. 

 07/31/17 Committee recommended this matter be held pending resolution of litigation.  

March 29, 2022 Board Meeting 



 
 

 
Employes’ Retirement System  ̶  Executive Director’s Report 
 
March 2022 
 
I. Personnel Update 

A. ERS is working with DER to fill the following positions: Pension Investment Analyst – 
Sr., ERS Network Security Administrator and Records Technician II.  
 

II. Member Services 
A. New retirees on payroll in February - 44; 30 are currently anticipated for the March 

payroll. 
B. There was a General City Retirement Workshop on 2/25/22 and 51 attended.  There 

was a New Employee Orientation for DPW on 1/18/22 and 12 attended.  There was a 
New Employee Orientation for 911 Operators on 2/22/22 and 6 attended. 

C. Below is a breakdown of to-date ERS benefits payouts/active/deferred counts: 
 

Category Count 
Annuitants   
Death - Duty 27 
Death - Ordinary 92 
Disability - Duty 388 
Disability - Ordinary 589 
Retirement 12,644 
Separation 37 
Total Annuitants 13,777 
Active 10,714 
Deferred 3,071 
Total Population 27,562 

 

III.  Financial Services 
A. Staff has begun work on the 2023 Budget Request which is anticipated to be presented 

at the next Board meeting. 
B. Staff continues to work with the actuary and financial auditory and everything is 

currently on schedule. 
 
IV. Information Services 

A. Proof of Concept (POC) for FileNet to BAW Upgrade in progress. 
B. Struts Upgrade and Modernize MERITS Website in progress. 
C. Printer Firmware Upgrade completed. 
D. Network Infrastructure Upgrade in progress. 
E. Vulnerability Assessment - 2021 in progress.  

F. Perforce Repository Upgrade in progress. 

G. IP Address Review and Cleanup – 2021 in progress. 

H. DNS Review and Cleanup – 2021 in progress. 

I. AD Review and Cleanup – 2021 in progress. 



 
 

J. Firewall Review and Cleanup – 2021 in progress. 

K. SAN Firmware and DSM Upgrade in progress. 

L. Video Conferencing System Upgrade completed. 

M. WebSphere Application Server Upgrade in progress. 

N. Backup Exec Upgrade in progress. 

O. PC Firmware Upgrade in progress. 

 

V. Administration  
 

A. Attached is a 2012 opinion prepared by the Reinhart firm regarding ERS Staff 
Compensation. Also attached is a 2007 Common Council resolution authorizing the 
Annuity & Pension Board to appoint a Board employee, along with a service request 
of the City Attorney’s Office to update the draft of the Intergovernmental Cooperation 
Agreement between CMERS and the City in connection with designating certain senior 
ERS officers as Annuity & Pension Board employees. The original draft agreement was 
never implemented.   



































Basic Website Metrics

Feb. Mar. Apr. May June July Aug. Sep. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb.

Visits 4,673 5,542 5,405 4,842 4,479 4,188 4,592 4,678 5,442 5,180 4,728 5,053 4,698

Users 3,563 4,050 4,029 3,816 3,440 3,203 3,566 3,533 4,015 3,813 3,667 3,810 3,551

Page Views 13,815 17,353 15,863 13,287 11,539 11,411 11,868 12,240 16,046 13,712 12,305 13,532 12,267

Pages/ Visit 2.96 3.13 2.93 2.74 2.58 2.72 2.58 2.62 2.95 2.65 2.60 2.68 2.61

Ave. Visit 2:21 2:40 2:19 2:07 2:07 2:10 2:10 2:23 2:35 2:10 2:09 2:18 2:10

3/1/2022                                                                                                                     CMERS 2017 Redesign – World (Not ERS)

2021    2022



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

VII. 

 

INFORMATIONAL 

 

Please be advised that the Annuity and Pension Board may vote to convene in closed session on the 

following item (A.), as provided in Section 19.85(1)(g), Wisconsin State Statutes, to confer with 

legal counsel concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is or 

is likely to become involved. The Board may then vote to reconvene in open session following the 

closed session. 

 

A. Pending Litigation Report.  

B. Conferences. 

C. Class Action Income 2022 YTD. 

D. Report on Bills. 

E. Deployment of Assets. 

F. Securities Lending Revenue and Budget Report. 

G. Preliminary Performance Report and Asset Allocation. 

 



 

789 North Water Street ♦ Suite 300 ♦ Milwaukee WI 53202 ♦ Phone 414-286-3557 or 1-800-815-8418 ♦ Fax 414-286-8428 
 Page 1 
 

  
 

   

PENDING LITIGATION REPORT  

 
 
Part 1.   ERS Litigation through the City Attorney 
 
MPSO, Local 215, et al. v City of Milwaukee, et al; Case Nos. 2019AP001319; 2018CV001274 
MPSO and Local 215 have filed suit on behalf of certain duty disability retirees against the City of Milwaukee and the Employes’ Retirement 
System alleging the defendants violated the collective bargaining agreements as it relates to the payment of the 5.8% pension offset. 
**See prior Reports for case history** 
 11/17/21 Defendants-Appellants’ Response in Opposition to Petition for Review filed with WI Supreme Court. 
 05/04/22 Status Conference scheduled in Circuit Court. 

 
 

James Miller and Marion Holley v. City of Milwaukee, et al; Case Nos. 2020AP001346; 2019CV008924 
Claimants allege the City of Milwaukee failed to advise two former police employees in deferred status that upon return to active employment 
as general city employees, their retirement eligibility would be reclassified under the terms set forth in Chapter 36 for General City members. 
**See prior Reports for case history** 
 01/28/22 Case remanded to Circuit Court. 
 02/11/22 Order for Summary Judgment Hearing signed. 

  

March 29, 2022 Board Meeting 
Board Meeting 
 
 



 

789 North Water Street ♦ Suite 300 ♦ Milwaukee WI 53202 ♦ Phone 414-286-3557 or 1-800-815-8418 ♦ Fax 414-286-8428 
 Page 2 
 

Faith Wooden v. City of Milwaukee, et al; Case No. 2022CV001119 
Widow of a deceased public safety employee filed a Petition for Certiorari Review of the Annuity & Pension Board’s Decision denying the 
petitioner’s Application for Accidental Death Benefits. 
 02/23/22 ERS served with Summons and Petition for Certiorari Review. 
 02/28/22 Letter to City Attorney’s Office requesting legal representation. Reported new claim to fiduciary carriers of ERS/APB. 
 03/14/22 Notice of Retainer, Answer and Affirmative Defense filed by Defendants/Respondents. 
 
 
 
 

Part 2.   ERS Administrative Appeal Hearings through the City Attorney 

 
Jason Rodriguez; Administrative Case No. 1443 
Status: Hearing stayed pending outcome of Appellant's state workers compensation appeal. Status conference to be scheduled if state appeal hearing has 
not been held by May 1, 2022.  

 
Sandrah Crawford; Administrative Case No. 1457 

Status: Judge Moroney appointed as new Hearing Examiner. Status Conference to be scheduled for May, 2022. 
 
 
 
   

Part 3.   Notice of Claim filed with ERS 
 

None. 
 
 
 
 

Part 4. ERS Litigation through Outside Legal Counsel 
 
ERS v Allianz Global Investors U.S. LLC, et al; Case No. 20-CV-08642 
Lawsuit against defendants alleging negligence and breach of contractual and fiduciary duties arising from misconduct and gross 
mismanagement of two investment funds (i.e., AllianzGI Structured Alpha 1000 Plus LLC and Allianz GI Structured Alpha U.S. Fixed Income 
250 LLC. 
**See prior Reports for case history** 
 08/24/21 Litigation is on-going. 
 



Page 1 

Client Conferences 2022 Board Meeting: March 29, 2022 

DATE(S) CONFERENCE(S) / LOCATION(S) SPONSOR(S) 

April 25 – 27, 2022 Callan Institute’s 2022 National Conference 
San Francisco, CA 

Callan Associates 

May 2 – 4, 2022 Annual Institutional Symposium 2022 
Austin, TX 

Dimensional Fund Advisors 

May 11, 2022 
11:30 am - Noon 

How to Navigate Private Equity Fees and Terms 
Virtual 

Callan Associates 

May 11, 2022 2022 AQR Chicago Forum 
Chicago, IL 

AQR 

June 22 – 23, 2022 2022 Neuberger Berman Private Markets Limited Partners Annual Meeting 
New York, NY 

Neuberger Berman 

September 20 – 21, 2022 2022 USLF Annual Investor Meeting 
Miami, FL 

ProLogis 

September 20 – 22, 2022 
10:30 am – 1:30 pm 

“Callan College” Introduction to Investments 
Virtual 

Callan Associates 



Page 1 

Trustee Conferences 2022                                                               Board Meeting: March 29, 2022 

 

DATE(S) CONFERENCE(S) / LOCATION(S) SPONSOR(S) 

   

April 5, 2022 
Noon – 1:00 pm 

Taking Advantage of Three Megatrends in India – Matthew Dreith 
Virtual 
 

CFA Society of Madison 

April 7, 2022 
Noon – 1:00 pm 

Global Commodities – Hot Start but Cool End? The Outlook for Global Oil & Gas 
Prices and Energy Equities in 2022 – Dr. Edward Morse 
Virtual 
 

CFA Society of Madison 

April 12, 2022 
4:00pm – 5:00 pm 

The Latest and Greatest of Blockchain 
Virtual 
 

CFA Society of Chicago 

April 18 – 20, 2022 Pension Bridge Annual 
San Francisco, CA 
 

Pension Bridge 

May 1 – 4, 2022 25th Global Conference 2022 
Los Angeles, CA 
 

Milken Institute 

May 3 – 4, 2022 11th Annual Risk & Liquidity Forum 
Philadelphia, PA 
 

Institutional Investor 

May 10 – 11, 2022 8th Annual Redefining Fixed Income Forum 
Chicago, IL 
 

Institutional Investor 

May 18, 2022 8th Annual Midwest Institutional Forum 
Chicago, IL 
 

Markets Group 

May 21 – 22, 2022 Trustee Educational Seminar (TEDS); NCPERS Accredited Fiduciary (NAF) Program 
Washington, DC 
 

NCPERS 

May 22 – 25, 2022 Annual Conference & Exhibition (ACE 2022) 
Washington, DC 
 

NCPERS 

June 6 – 7, 2022 Certificate of Achievement in Public Plan Policy (CAPPP®): Pensions Part I 
Santa Monica, CA 
 

International Foundation of Employee 
Benefit Plans 

June 8 – 9, 2022 Certificate of Achievement in Public Plan Policy (CAPPP®): Pensions Part II  
Santa Monica, CA 
 

International Foundation of Employee 
Benefit Plans 

June 20 – 22, 2022 Roundtable for Consultants & Institutional Investors 
Chicago, IL 
 

Institutional Investor 



Page 2 

 

Trustee Conferences 2022                                                           Board Meeting: March 29, 2022 

 

DATE(S) CONFERENCE(S) / LOCATION(S) SPONSOR(S) 

   

July 21, 2022 ALTSCHI 
Chicago, IL 
 

Markets Group 

August 21 – 23, 2022 Public Pension Funding Forum 
Los Angeles, CA 
 

NCPERS 

September 14, 2022 6th Annual Midwest Institutional Real Estate Investor Forum 
Chicago, IL 
 

Markets Group 

September 15, 2022 8th Annual Great Plains Institutional Forum 
Minneapolis, MN 
 

Markets Group 

September 21 – 23, 2022 CII Fall 2022 Conference 
Boston, MA 
 

Council of Institutional Investors 

September 23 - 24, 2022 Certificate Series – Investment Basics 
Washington DC 
 

International Foundation of Employee Benefit 
Plans 

October 22 – 23, 2022 Certificate of Achievement in Public Plan Policy (CAPPP®): Pension Part II 
Las Vegas, NV 
 

International Foundation of Employee Benefit 
Plans 

October 22 – 23, 2022 NCPERS Accredited Fiduciary (NAF) Program 
Nashville, TN 
 

NCPERS 

October 23 – 26, 2022 2022 Public Safety Conference 
Nashville, TN 
 

NCPERS 

 



Upcoming Due Diligence Meetings 
 

 

Date Manager(s) Team 
April 11-13, 2022 New Hedge Fund of Funds 

Manager 
Erich, Joe McGuane (Callan), 
Sean Lee (Callan) 
 

April 20, 2022 CastleArk (Chicago, IL) Erich and Tom 
 

May 9-11, 2022 Loomis Sayles, MFS, Prologis 
(Boston, MA) 

David and Tom 

 



Class Action Income 2022 YTD

Asset Description Date(s) Amount

Foreign Exchange Benchmark Rates Antitrust Litigation 1/18/2022 4,007$                  

First Solar 2/4/2022 14,395$                

Foreign Exchange Benchmark Rates Antitrust Litigation 2/28/2022 150$                     

LIBOR-Based Securities Litigation 2/28/2022 871$                     

Total Class Action Income Received in 2022 YTD 19,423$                













MERS PERFORMANCE ESTIMATES
February 28, 2022

2021 Return Jan 2022 Feb 2022

YTD Thru 

2/28/22

Northern Trust S&P 500 Index 28.69% -5.17% -2.99% -8.01%
S&P 500 28.71% -5.17% -2.99% -8.01%
Difference -0.01% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

BlackRock Russell 1000 Value Index 25.18% -2.35% -1.16% -3.48%
Russell 1000 Value 25.16% -2.33% -1.16% -3.46%
Difference 0.02% -0.02% 0.00% -0.02%

DFA US Large Cap Value 27.52% -1.34% -0.25% -1.59%
Russell 1000 Value 25.16% -2.33% -1.16% -3.46%
Difference 2.36% 0.99% 0.91% 1.87%

Polen 24.84% -9.04% -7.00% -15.41%
S&P 500 28.71% -5.17% -2.99% -8.01%
Difference -3.86% -3.87% -4.01% -7.40%

Earnest 26.09% -4.71% -1.52% -6.16%
Russell MidCap  22.58% -7.37% -0.72% -8.03%
Difference 3.50% 2.66% -0.80% 1.87%

CastleArk 12.30% -15.26% -0.41% -15.61%
Russell 2000 Growth 2.83% -13.40% 0.44% -13.03%
Difference 9.46% -1.86% -0.85% -2.58%

DFA US Small Cap Value 40.61% -2.53% 2.17% -0.41%
Russell 2000 Value 28.27% -5.83% 1.65% -4.27%
Difference 12.34% 3.30% 0.52% 3.86%

Brandes 14.37% 2.28% -2.10% 0.13%
MSCI EAFE 11.26% -4.83% -1.77% -6.52%
Difference 3.10% 7.11% -0.33% 6.65%

William Blair 12.75% -11.99% -3.67% -15.22%
MSCI ACWI ex US 8.29% -3.67% -1.97% -5.57%
Difference 4.46% -8.32% -1.70% -9.65%

DFA Int'l Small Cap Value  15.90% -1.68% -0.33% -2.00%
MSCI EAFE Small Cap 10.10% -7.32% -1.27% -8.49%
Difference 5.80% 5.64% 0.94% 6.49%

AQR 0.24% -1.45% -3.16% -4.56%
MSCI EM -2.54% -1.89% -2.99% -4.83%
Difference 2.78% 0.44% -0.17% 0.27%

BlackRock Global Alpha Tilts 18.72% -4.79% -3.04% -7.68%
MSCI ACWI 18.54% -4.91% -2.58% -7.37%
Difference 0.18% 0.12% -0.46% -0.31%

MFS 19.56% -5.60% -3.59% -8.99%
MSCI ACWI 18.54% -4.91% -2.58% -7.37%
Difference 1.02% -0.69% -1.01% -1.62%

BlackRock Gov't Bond Index -1.78% -0.66% -2.43%
Bloomberg Gov't Bond -1.87% -0.66% -2.52%
Difference 0.09% 0.00% 0.09%

Reams -1.22% -2.01% -0.81% -2.80%
Bloomberg US Aggregate -1.54% -2.15% -1.12% -3.25%
Difference 0.32% 0.14% 0.31% 0.45%

Loomis Sayles 2.14% -2.60% -1.46% -4.02%
Bloomberg US Aggregate -1.54% -2.15% -1.12% -3.25%
Difference 3.69% -0.45% -0.34% -0.77%

UBS A&Q 8.12% 0.73% -0.02% 0.71%
One Year Libor + 4% 4.27% 0.02% 0.10% 0.12%
Difference 3.86% 0.71% -0.12% 0.59%

Principal 17.58% -0.35% 1.64% 1.28%
Blended Benchmark 15.87% 0.59% 2.39% 2.99%
Difference 1.72% -0.94% -0.75% -1.71%

Baird -0.20% -0.48% -0.33% -0.81%
Bloomberg Govt/Credit 1-3 Year -0.47% -0.72% -0.44% -1.15%
Difference 0.27% 0.24% 0.11% 0.34%

Total MERS 18.89% -2.11% 1.39% -0.75%

Account

The calculation for the Fund’s total rate of return is based on the Modified Dietz method.  Although periodic cash flows 
(i.e., contributions, redemptions) are not time weighted, they are accounted for in the Fund’s total rate of return.  
Therefore, this estimated rate of return may vary slightly from the rate of return reported by the custodian.  

The returns shown are gross of fees (except Total MERS, DFA International Small Cap Value, William Blair 
International Growth, AQR, Principal, and UBS A&Q)

3/21/2022



ACTUAL ALLOCATIONS

Target Market Value Allocation

EQUITY

Public Equity

Domestic

Passive Large Cap Equity Northern Trust (S&P 500) 5.40% 303,193,062$                4.91%

BlackRock (Russell 1000 Value) 2.60% 156,693,025$                2.54%

       Sub-Total Passive Large Cap Equity 8.00% 459,886,087$                7.45%

Active Large Cap Equity Polen (S&P 500) 2.60% 151,679,200$                2.46%

DFA (Russell 1000 Value) 2.60% 157,553,047$                2.55%

       Sub-Total Active Large Cap Equity 5.20% 309,232,247$                5.01%

Active Mid/Small Cap Equity Earnest Partners (Russell MidCap) 2.00% 116,569,030$                1.89%

CastleArk (Russell 2000 Growth) 1.60% 94,523,147$                  1.53%

DFA (Russell 2000 Value) 3.20% 195,251,517$                3.16%

       Sub-Total Active Mid/Small Cap Equity 6.80% 406,343,693$                6.58%

Total Domestic 20.00% 1,175,462,028$             19.05%

Active International Equity Brandes (MSCI EAFE) 6.40% 375,143,127$                6.08%

William Blair (MSCI ACWI ex US) 4.80% 261,060,145$                4.23%

DFA (MSCI EAFE Small Cap) 3.20% 186,949,278$                3.03%

AQR (MSCI EM) 1.60% 90,304,718$                  1.46%

Total International 16.00% 913,457,268$                14.80%

Global

Active Global Equity BlackRock (MSCI ACWI) 4.80% 276,696,330$                4.48%

MFS (MSCI ACWI) 3.20% 187,850,751$                3.04%

Total Global 8.00% 464,547,081$                7.53%

Total Public Equity 44.00% 2,553,466,377$             41.38%

Private Equity

Abbott Capital (Russell 3000 Quarter Lag + 2%) 3.50% 362,582,935$                5.88%

Mesirow (Russell 3000 Quarter Lag + 2%) 3.50% 301,733,505$                4.89%

Neuberger Berman (Russell 3000 Quarter Lag + 2%) 1.50% 27,674,577$                  0.45%

Private Advisors (Russell 3000 Quarter Lag + 2%) 1.50% 69,629,208$                  1.13%

Total Private Equity 10.00% 761,620,225$                12.34%

TOTAL EQUITY (Public Equity + Private Equity) 54.00% 3,315,086,602$         53.72%

FIXED INCOME & ABSOLUTE RETURN

Fixed Income

Cash 1.00% 106,858,268$                1.73%

Passive Fixed Income BlackRock (Bloomberg US Government) 7.92% 414,387,237$                6.72%

Active Fixed Income Reams (Bloomberg US Aggregate) 7.04% 611,170,270$                9.90%

Loomis Sayles (Bloomberg US Aggregate) 7.04% 459,380,948$                7.44%

       Sub-Total Active Fixed Income 14.08% 1,070,551,218$             17.35%

Total Fixed Income 23.00% 1,591,796,723$             25.80%

Absolute Return

Hedge Fund of Funds Manager 3.00% -$                                0.00%

 UBS  (1 Year Libor + 4%) 7.00% 446,558,352$                7.24%

Total Absolute Return 10.00% 446,558,352$                7.24%

TOTAL FIXED INCOME & ABSOLUTE RETURN 33.00% 2,038,355,076$         33.03%

REAL ASSETS

Private Real Estate - Core JP Morgan (NFI-ODCE) 3.03% 141,210,449$                2.29%

Morgan Stanley (NFI-ODCE) 3.03% 169,661,562$                2.75%

LaSalle (NFI-ODCE) 1.52% 97,207,318$                  1.58%

Prologis (NFI-ODCE) 1.52% 124,861,883$                2.02%

       Sub-Total Private Real Estate - Core 9.10% 532,941,212$                8.64%

Private Real Estate - Non-Core Non-Core Real Estate (NFI-ODCE) 0.00% 23,080,789$                  0.37%

Public Real Assets Principal (Blended Benchmark) 3.90% 261,305,056$                4.23%

TOTAL REAL ASSETS 13.00% 817,327,057$            13.25%
 

TOTAL ERS 100.00% 6,170,768,735$         100.00%

Total City Reserve Fund      R. W. Baird 81,609,443

February 28, 2022

International

3/21/2022


	Agenda
	Regular Meeting
	I.A. Approval of Minutes - Regular Meeting Held February 22, 2022
	II. Chief Investment Officer Report - March Board CIO Report
	III. Administration & Operations Committee Report
	III.A. Administration & Operations Committee Report - Approval of Contract Amendment with United Mailing Services, Inc.
	III.B. Administration & Operations Committee Report - Approval of Close out of 2021 Budget
	IV. New Business
	IV.A. New Business - Board Rule II.C.5. -- Role of Deputy Director in the Absence or Illness of the Secretary and Executive Director
	IV.B. New Business - Retirements, Death Claims, and Refunds (February)
	IV.C. New Business - Conference Requests - March 2022 Board Meeting
	V. Medical Reports
	V.A. Medical Reports - All Duty & Ordinary Disability Applications & Re-examinations (March)
	VI. Unfinished Business
	VI.A. Unfinished Business - Pending Legal Opinions and Service Requests Report
	VI.B. Unfinished Business - Pending Legislation Report
	VI.C. Unfinished Business - Executive Director's Report - Inventory of ERS Projects
	VII. Informational
	VII.A. Informational - Pending Litigation Report
	VII.B. Informational - Conferences
	VII.C. Informational - Class Action Income
	VII.D. Informational - Report on Bills
	VII.E. Informational - Deployment of Assets
	VII.F. Informational - Securities Lending Revenue and Budget Report
	VII.G. Informational - Preliminary Performance Report and Asset Allocation



